
CITY COUNCIL BUSINESS MEETING AGENDA 

1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, AL 

 AUGUST 1, 2011 

BUSINESS MEETING 

6:30 P.M.                                                                           

 
 1.  CALL TO ORDER 

 2.  ROLL CALL/INVOCATION / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE       

 

3.  APPROVE MINUTES:     Council meeting minutes / July 18, 2011    

 

CHANGE:  September 5, 2011 Council Meeting Date due to Labor Day 

                                                            

4. REPORT STANDING COMMITTEES: 
    A. FINANCE COMMITTEE / Boulware 

    B.  BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE-  Lake   

 C.  PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE –     

    D.  CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE  -   
    E.  PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE / SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY  -  Yelding 

          Environmental Advisory Board Nominee: 

          Appoint:  Stan Arbaczauskas 

          Appoint:   Art Hosey       

  

5. REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS:  

    A.  Board of Zoning Adjustments – Jones  

    B.  Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Barnette   

          Need one (1) member 

 

    C.  Industrial Development Board – Yelding     

          Need two (2) members 

 

    D.  Library Board – Lake  

    E.  Planning Commission – Barnette   

a.)  Re-Set a Public Hearing Date for September 6, 2011 ,and approve advertising to consider: 

 

1.)  Annexation:  Audubon Holding, LLC 

 Property Located: Southeast of the intersection of County Road 64 and Pollard Road 

Present Zoning:  RMF-6, Multiple Family District in Baldwin County District 15 

Requested Zoning: R-4, High Density Multi-Family Residential District 

Recommendation:        Unanimous Favorable 

 

2.) Annexation:  Right-of-Way of AL State Highway181 

 Property Located: AL State Highway 181 from Lawson Road  

            South to the Southernmost Corporate 

    Limits of the City of Daphne 

 Recommendation:      Unanimous Favorable     

       

    F.  Recreation Board – Reese       

          Need one (1) member 

       

    G.  Utility Board - Scott     
           

 

6.  REPORTS OF OFFICERS: 

     A.  Mayor’s Report                 

B. City Attorney’s Report  
Discuss New Horizon Retail Development MOU 1



 

 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA                                  AUGUST 1, 2011                                      PAGE   2 

 

 

 

C. Department Head Comments    

David Cohen / City Clerk / Discuss NRDA Property 

 

7. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:    

 

 

 

8. RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 

 

      RESOLUTIONS: 

 

NO RESOLUTIONS 
 

 

 

      ORDINANCES: 

 

        2
ND

  READ. 

 a.)  Appropriation of Funds: Floor Scrubber. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2011-55 

 

b.)  Daphne High School Stadium / Final Payment. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2011-56 

 

c.)  One-Time Lump Sum Pay Adjustment. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2011-57 

 

 

 

9. COUNCIL COMMENTS                   

10.  ADJOURN 

2



CITY OF DAPHNE 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 

ROLL CALL 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL:                                         CALL  VOTES   

                                  

COUNCILMAN YELDING     PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILWOMAN BARNETTE    PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILMAN LAKE   PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILMAN REESE   PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILMAN SCOTT   PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCIMAN BOULWARE     PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILMAN PALUMBO   PRESENT       ABSENT         

    

MAYOR 

 

MAYOR SMALL    PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

CITY CLERK: 

 

DAVID L. COHEN                 PRESENT___    ABSENT___ 

 

CITY ATTORNEY: 
 

CITY ATTORNEY JAY ROSS  PRESENT       ABSENT    

 

 

MINUTE NOTES: 

 

 

                                                             

 

                                                             

 

                                                             

 

                                                             

 

3



                                                             

 

                                                             

 

                                                             

 

 

      CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

MINUTES 

 

NOTES: 

 

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                   

 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                                                             

4



JULY 18, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                   

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

1.   CALL TO ORDER 

Council President Barnette called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

 

2.    ROLL CALL/INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Invocation was given by Councilman Scott. 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:  Cathy Barnette; John Lake; Ron Scott; Derek Boulware; August 

Palumbo. 

 

ABSENT: Bailey Yelding; Kelly Reese. 

 

Also present: Mayor Small; David Cohen, City Clerk; Rebecca Hayes, Assistant City Clerk; Jay Ross, 

City Attorney; James White, Fire Chief; Adrienne Jones, Planning Director; Vickie Hinman, Human 

Resources Director; David Carpenter, Police Chief; Kim Briley, Finance Director; Tonja Young, Library 

Director; Richard Johnson, Publics Works Director; Richard Merchant, Building Official; John Williams, 

Civic Center; Officer Sidney Bumpers, Police Department; Scott Hutchinson, City Engineer; Al Guarisco, 

Village Point Foundation; Doug Dugat, Recreation Board; Joe Lemoine, Planning Commission; Willie 

Robison, BZA. 

 

Absent: Margaret Thigpen, Civic Center Director; David McKelroy, Recreation Director. 

 

 

 

3.  APPROVE MINUTES 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Boulware to adopt the July 5, 2011 Council meeting minutes.   

Seconded by Councilman Palumbo.  

 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

MOTION BY councilman Boulware to adopt the July 11, 2011 Special Called Council meeting 

minutes.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Boulware to adopt the July 11, 2011 Council Work Session minutes.  

Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 
5



JULY 18, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

2 

 

PRESENTATION:  Certificate of Congratulations / District 7 AAA Champions Dixie Youth 

Baseball Team 

 

Mayor Small read and presented the certificates to the Dixie Youth Baseball players.  They are the 

District 7 Champions.  They will represent Daphne at the State Championship in Athens, Alabama, 

and if they win that tournament then they go to the Regionals in North Carolina.   

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to suspend the rules to consider a motion to donate $1,000 

from his and the Mayors travel fund to the Dixie Youth Baseball Team to defray expenses 

incurred to represent the City of Daphne at the State Championship in Athens, Alabama.  

Seconded by Councilman Boulware. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE  

 
Lake   Aye     Palumbo  Aye 

Scott   Aye     Barnette  Aye 

Boulware  Aye 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to donate $1,000 from his and the Mayors travel fund to the 

Dixie Youth AAA Baseball Team to defray expenses incurred to represent the City of Daphne at 

the State Championship in Athens, Alabama.   Seconded by Councilman Boulware.  

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

4. REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEES: 
   A.  FINANCE COMMITTEE – Boulware 

The minutes for the July 11
th

 meeting are in the packet. 

 

Treasurers Report: 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to accept the Treasurers report as of June 30, 2011 in the amount 

of $20,274,742.84.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

 

6



JULY 18, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

3 

 

Sales and Use Taxes: May 31, 2011 

 

Sales and Use Tax Collected for May 2011   -      $889,945 

Sales and Use Tax Budgeted for May 2011   -      $851,910             

Over Budget (for May)                                       -   $  38,035 

 

YTD Budget Collections Variance – Over Budget - $685,307  

 

Lodging Tax Collections, May 2011  

 

The Lodging Tax Collections report shows $57,880.48 collected for May, 2011. 

  

Zydeco Festival Report – FY 2011 

 

This year’s Zydeco Festival report showed expenses over revenues of ($26,190.97).  Annual 

comparisons from 2005 through 2011 were also presented showing that historically expenses have 

always exceeded revenues:  

 

 FY2005 – (32,726.60) 

 FY2006 – (8,558.24) 

 FY2007 – (39,050.75) 

 FY2008 – (49,359.48)  

 FY2009 – (42,173.83 

 FY2010 – (5,664.68) 

 FY2011 – (26,190.97) 

 

         Next meeting will be August 8
th

 at 4:00 p.m. in the Executive Conference Room   

 

B. BUILDINGS AND PROPERTY COMMITTEE – Lake 

No report.   

 

C. PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE –  
No report.  The next meeting will be the 2

nd
 Wednesday of August. 

 

D. CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE –   

No report.  The next meeting will be the 2
nd

 Wednesday in August after the Public Safety meeting. 

 

E. PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE/SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY – Yelding 

No report. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
7



JULY 18, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

4 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Palumbo to suspend the rules to consider a motion to appoint Mr. 

Chester McConnell to the Environmental Advisory Committee.  Seconded by Councilman Lake.   

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 

 
Lake Aye     Palumbo  Aye 

Scott Aye     Barnette  Aye 

Boulware Aye 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Palumbo to appoint Mr. Chester McConnell to the Environmental 

Advisory Committee.  Seconded by Councilman Lake.   

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

5.   REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS: 

A. Board of Zoning Adjustments – Mrs. Jones 

The board will meet the 1
st
 Thursday in August to consider set back variances.  

 

MOTION BY Councilman Palumbo to appoint Mr. Tony Felts as an alternate for the Board of 

Zoning Adjustments.  Seconded by Councilman Lake.   

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

B. Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Barnette 

The next meeting is next Monday at 5:30 p.m. 

 

C. Industrial Development Board – Yelding 

The board needs two (2) members. 

 

 

D.   Library Board – Lake 

The Library provides free and equal access to cutting-edge library services and materials for the citizens 

of Daphne and the surrounding areas.  All Camellia Net downloads are free to anyone with a Daphne 

Library card. The library joins the other large Baldwin County Libraries in providing free service.  Audio 

books and e-books include fiction, as well as topics such as parenting, gardening, cooking, health issues 

and starting a new business.  Music downloads range from classical and country to Celtic and Latin to 

children lullabies.  Downloads are formatted for temporary use only.  From August 1
st
 through September  8



JULY 18, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

5 

 

1
st
 the Library will offer Summer Reading for adults: “One World, Many Stories”. Topics include 

adventure, world literature and places in peril. 

 

E. Planning Commission – Jones 

The next meeting will be Wednesday at 8:30 a.m. There are subdivisions requests, zoning request and 

site plan approvals that will be considered.  They will also be discussing sign ordinance proposals for 

an amendment.   

 

F. Recreation Board - Reese 

There is a vacancy on the board that needs to be filled. 

 

G. Utility Board – Scott 

The minutes from the May 25
th

 meeting are in the packet.  He reported that the Utilities is having a 

special where they will put in an irrigation meter for $150 which means, basically, that you can water 

your lawn, fill your pool, wash your car or whatever you need to do, because sewer bills are 

determined by water usage. 

 

 

 

6.  REPORTS OF THE OFFICERS: 

    A.  Mayor’s Report 

Mayor Small mentioned that Tyler Trembly, a member of the Dixie Youth Baseball Team, lost the 

battle with cancer, and if anyone would like to make a donation they are being accepted at the 

Recreation Department or somebody with the Daphne Dixie Youth organization.  Coffee with the 

Mayor is next Thursday, July 28
th

, and the Department Heads will be giving updates on their 

departments, and will answer questions. 

 

 B.  City Attorney Report 

Mr. Ross stated that he has talked with Mr. Hickman, and is waiting on information from him in order 

to complete the MOU with New Horizon. He will send a draft to council so that it will make the 

August 1
st
 council meeting.  He said he told Mr. Hickman that it would not be voted on until the 

August 15
th

 meeting. 

 

C. Department Head Comments 

Richard Johnson – Public Works Director – invited council and citizens when they leave the building 

to turn south to see the recent addition to the Public Works family.  He thanks council and everyone 

that made that happen.  He said that it has been nine months for the recycle truck to get here.  The 

second truck will be on the road by the end of the week.  He reminded everyone to recycle.  He 

thanked Mr. Jim Ransom for loaning the city a truck when the one the city had died.  The county is 

always willing to help out. He again thanked Baldwin County for their support. 

 

Vickie Hinman – Human Resources Director – invited council to the 9
th

 Annual Employee Wellness 

Fair being held August 3
rd

 from 11-2 at the Civic Center. 

 

 

9



JULY 18, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

6 

 

Tonja Young – Library Director – announced that the Library Board has canceled the August 

meeting. 

 

David Cohen – City Clerk – reported that he has talked with two people, and have had several requests 

for more information.  Mr. Allen whose property is behind the old Angelo’s Steak House is receptive, 

and received a letter from him on Friday giving permission to proceed with an appraisal.  He met with 

Mrs. Marino today, and she is receptive to getting an appraisal of her property. He has not gotten in 

touch with the bank owned property on Bay Front Park Drive, but he plans to do that tomorrow. He 

will also talk with the other people, and he will bring to council at the next meeting any other 

properties that come up. 

 

7. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
Mr. Doug Dugat – 9391 Montpelier Place – Recreation Board – spoke regarding building of the 

pavilion at the Dog Park saying it was a slap in the face of the Recreation Board.  He also spoke 

regarding the bocce courts. He asked for direction and support from the council, and to consider the 

recommendations that come from the board. 

 

 

8.   RESOLUTIONS, ORDINANCES, ORDERS AND OTHER BUSINESS 

 

      RESOLUTIONS: 

a.)  Bid Award: 2011-U-FD/Burn Building Training Center . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2011-52 

 

b.)  Bid Award: 2011-V-Park Chemicals . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2011-53 

 

c.)  Bid Award: 2011-W-Garbage Carts . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2011-54 

 

d.)  Bid Award: 2011-X-Uniforms (PW) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2011-55 

 

e.)  Bid Award: 2011-Y-Police Vehicle Equipment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2011-56 

 

f.)  Ecumenical Ministries, Inc. Agreement . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2011-57 

 

 

MOTION BY Council Boulware to waive the reading of Resolution 2011-52.  Seconded by 

Councilman Scott. 

 

Mr. Ross stated that the apparent low bidder for the Fire Department Burn Building was recommended 

to be disqualified, because they were not responsive as to what the definition of their submittals were.  

They received information Friday from Mrs. Henson, and he spoke with the Mayor regarding it, and 

he concurs with the recommendation from the Finance Directors office that the lowest bidder, the 

group out of Louisiana, was not the lowest responsive bidder based on his reading of the information.  

He concurs that they should be disqualified, and council if it so desires can take the next lowest bidder, 

which is the resolution presented tonight.  

 
10



JULY 18, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

7 

 

Mayor Small stated that, basically, the reason they were disqualified was that this is a design build, 

and they were supposed to show some type of rendering or some drawings of what they planned on 

doing there according to the specifications, and they did not send it or produce any drawings or 

renderings so the Fire Department could see what they were getting.  The other companies and the 

next lowest bidder did send in renderings or drawings.  The rejected company did not send any 

drawings or renderings. 

 

Mr. Ross stated that the company was under the belief that if they got the bid they would supply the 

drawings then.  Mr. Ross does not agree with that interpretation of the RFP as submitted.  Mr. Ross 

stated that it is his opinion that the RFP required a submittal of the drawings or renderings with the 

bid.  

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Boulware to adopt Resolution 2011-52.  Seconded by Scott. 

   

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Boulware to waive the reading of Resolutions 2011-53, 2011-54, 

2011-55 and 2011-56, 2011-57.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Boulware to adopt Resolution 2011-53.  Seconded by Councilman 

Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Boulware to adopt Resolution 2011-54.  Seconded by Councilman 

Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Boulware to adopt Resolution 2011-55.  Seconded by Councilman 

Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

 11



JULY 18, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

8 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Boulware to adopt Resolution 2011-56.  Seconded by Councilman 

Scott.   

 

AYE    Scott, Boulware, Palumbo, Barnette                                  ABSTAIN    Lake 

 

                                                               MOTION CARRIED 
 

MOTION BY Councilman Boulware to adopt Resolution 2011-57.  Seconded by Councilman 

Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED   

 

 

 
ORDINANCES: 

 

2
ND 

READ 
a.)   Land Use and Development Ordinance. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2011-54 

 

 

         1
ST

 READ 

b.)  Appropriation of Funds: Floor Scrubber. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2011-55 

 

c.)  Daphne High School Stadium / Final Payment. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2011-56 

 

d.)  One-Time Lump Sum Pay Adjustment. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2011-57 

 
 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to waive the reading of Ordinance 2011-54.  Seconded by 

Councilman Boulware. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Ordinance 2011-54.  Seconded by Councilman Boulware. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
12



JULY 18, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

9 

 

ORDINANCES 2011-55, 2011-56 and 2011-57 WERE  MADE 1
ST

  READ. 
 

 

 

8. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

 

Councilman Lake asked the City Attorney to research the legality of including in the business license 

renewals the option to contribute from $1.00 to $100 toward the capital improvement for recreation, and in 

return the city gives the business a decal to put on their door to show they support Daphne Recreation.  He 

said that they need to start looking at some sort of fund raiser through Daphne businesses for capital 

improvement of the 100+ acres. He would like to see a program implemented, but he does not know the 

legalities.   

 

Councilman Scott commented setting the record straight on an editorial by Mr. McConnell.  He said in his 

editorial Sunday “to treat them equal to other businesses such as Dick’s that receive no tax breaks.”  He 

clarified that saying that when you go into Dick’s and by $100 worth of something they are going to charge 

you $9.50 in tax, of which, $2.50 of that goes to the City of Daphne, and unfortunately 1% of that goes to 

the developer of Dick’s Development so Dick’s is paying the exact same deal that the developer New 

Horizons has with a contract or letter of intent from Academy Sports.  It is exactly identical.  Dick’s is in a 

development where the City of Daphne did an improvement district some 10 years ago to the tune of some 

seven to eight million dollars or so.  The Academy Sports location is where the city is receiving no income, 

and if it is put together and Academy does come they are looking at a revenue stream that they would not 

otherwise have, and as far as the improvements that the developer discussed turn lanes, sewer lift stations 

those would allow additional development up Highway 90, and that corridor along Highway 90 has been 

zoned B-2, except for the one small subdivision on the north side of Highway 90, Douglas Road,  the rest of 

it is B-2, commercial, and the Planning Commission and Comprehensive Plan designated that area as 

commercial development for the city since before he came to town.  One of the things they have planned to 

do is put in common detention which is a concept that they have been kicking around and wanting 

somebody to do for some time, and according the New Horizon engineers the water quality coming across 

that area will help and not be detrimental to it.  When people write editorials if they don’t have all the facts 

he would encourage them to have them or call someone to get the facts before they go publishing 

themselves incorrectly. 

 

Councilman Palumbo said since Mr. McConnell is not here to speak out and defend himself so he will say 

the very first amendment in the Bill of Rights is the right of citizens to assemble and express free speech.  

For a council member to refer to citizens that take time away from their jobs and family to attend Public 

Hearings and exercise that right to opinion to refer to them as “usual suspects” and to further name them 

publicly is not only irresponsible, but outright irreprehensible.  This is the type of thing that adds distaste 

that folks have for elected officials at every level.  It exemplifies the notion of public officials being out of 

touch with the public, and sitting in ivory towers, and it is wrong.  It puts a dampening effect on anyone who 

might want to participate in the democratic process.  He thinks the folks referred to publicly as “usual 

suspects” are owed an apology. 

 

Councilman Scott stated that he did not name anyone publicly; Councilman Palumbo can ask Mr. 

Henderson who wrote the article he provided those names. 

13



JULY 18, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

10 

 

Councilman Palumbo stated that perhaps Mr. Henderson should apologize or make a retraction if he 

concluded who the “usual suspects” were.   

 

 

9. ADJOURN 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adjourn.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 7:40 p.m. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by,                                 

                             
 

________________________________                                                                         

David L. Cohen,        

City Clerk, MMC                   

                                                           Certification by Presiding Officer:       

 

 

       ________________________________                                                                              

       Cathy S. Barnette, 

       Council President 

14



CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
STANDING COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 
FINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT 

 
                                                                    
                                                                   

                                                                  
 
                                                                  
 
                                                                  
 

BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE REPORT  
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    

PLANNING/ZONING/CODE ENFORCEMENT COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
 

PUBLIC SAFETY/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    

                                                                  
 
                                                                  
 

PUBLIC WORKS/BEAUTIFICATION/MUSEUM COMMITTEE  REPORT 
 
                                                                  
 
                                                                  

15



Stan Arbaczauskas 
PO Box 2458, Daphne, Alabama  36526 

251-654-1427  
 

 

 
 

Work      

Experience 

Ecologist – 11 Years 
Consulting: 
Performing Wetland Determinations & Delineations 
Managing & Restoring Wetland Mitigation Banking Sites 
Federal, State, & Local Permitting 
Surveying and Relocation for Endangered Species 
Preparing Baseline Surveys for Conservation Easements 
Providing Hydrological Studies 
Prescribed Burning  
Natural Resource Management for Tracts > 70,000 acres 
Timber Management  
Performing Phase I Environmental Site Assessments 
Natural Resource Planner Baldwin County Commission: 

 Managed  NPDES Construction & MS4 Permits  
Served as Staff Person for Environmental Advisory Board 
Procured and Managed Grants 
Technical Advisor for Development of Watershed Plans 
Managed County-Owned Underground Storage Tanks 
Served as Interagency Liaison 

  

Certification       

mmm& 

Professional 

Course Work   

University of South Alabama - 2000  
Bachelor of Science:  Biology major, chemistry minor 
Commercial Pesticide Applicator Certification  

Forestry/Ground Application  
Erosion Control Course  

International Erosion Control Association  
U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Wetland Delineation  

Jim Teaford                                                                                                                  

Plant Identification Course  
Robert Haynes 

Field Indicators for Hydric Soils  
Wade Hurt  

ADEM-approved Qualified Credential Inspector  
Home Builder’s Association    

Conservation Easement Writing 
Numerous Guest Speakers  

Wetland Rapid Assessment Procedure (WRAP)  
Raymond E. Miller & Boyd E. Gunsalus  

References Art Hosey, Retired Regulatory Chief, USACE Mobile District 
Phone: 251-626-5308 
Leslie Turney, Project Manager, ADEM Coastal Zone 
Phone: 251-694-3873 
JJ McCool, President, Wildlife Solutions, Inc. 
Phone: 251-591-2682 

16



 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

ORDINANCE 2011-____ 

 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO ANNEX THE RIGHT OF WAY OF ALABAMA STATE 

HIGHWAY 181 FROM LAWSON ROAD SOUTH TO THE SOUTHERNMOST 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

WHEREAS, on the 25
th

 day of May, 2011, the State of Alabama, being the owner of the 

real property herein described, did file with the City a letter containing the signature of Vincent 

E. Calametti, P.E., an authorized agent of the State of Alabama Department of Transportation, 

and a map of said property showing its proximity to the corporate limits of the City of Daphne, 

Alabama, whereby the State of Alabama provided its consent to the annexation of said real 

property into the corporate limits of the City of Daphne, Alabama; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Daphne, Alabama, desires to utilize said real property for the 

health, safety, and welfare purposes of providing fire and police protection; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the City of Daphne, Alabama, at its regularly 

scheduled meeting of June 23, 2011, forwarded a unanimous favorable recommendation to the 

City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama for annexation of the areas shown in Exhibit “A”; 

and,  

 

 WHEREAS, after proper publication, a public hearing was held on August 1, 2011, by 

the City Council of the City of Daphne concerning said letter for annexation; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne determined it is in the public 

interest that said real property be annexed into the City of Daphne, Alabama and that all legal 

requirements for annexing said real property have been met pursuant to Sections 11-42-20 

through 11-42-24, Code of Alabama (1975).  

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 SECTION I:  ANNEXATION 

 

 The boundary lines of the City of Daphne, Alabama, be, and the same are hereby altered 

or rearranged as to include all of the territory heretofore encompassed by the corporate limits of 

the City of Daphne, Alabama and in addition thereto the following described territory, to-wit: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

17



 

 
ORDINANCE 2011-              ANNEXATION ROW OF AL ST. HWY 181                 PAGE  2 

 

 

 

Name:   Right-of-Way of Alabama State Highway 181 from Lawson Road southward unto the  

              southernmost City limits 

 

Legal Description: BEGINNING AT THE POINT OF INTERSECTION OF THE SOUTH 

RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF LAWSON ROAD AND THE WEST RIGHT-OF-

WAY LINE OF STATE HIGHWAY 181 (FORMERLY COUNTY ROAD 27), 

SECTION 34, TOWNSHIP 4 SOUTH, RANGE 2 EAST, FOR THE POINT OF 

BEGINNING; THENCE RUN SOUTHERLY ALONG THE WEST RIGHT-

OF-WAY BOUNDARY LINE OF STATE HIGHWAY 181 TO THE POINT 

OF INTERSECTION OF THE SOUTH PROPERTY LINE OF OLDFIELD 

SUBDIVISION, PHASE ONE AS RECORDED WITH THE JUDGE OF 

PROBATE BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA ON SLIDE 2328-C&D, 

SECTION 34, TOWNSHIP 5 SOUTH, RANGE 2 EAST; THENCE 

EASTERLY  TO THE POINT OF INTERSECTION OF THE SOUTH 

PROPERTY LINE OF DUNMORE SUBDIVISION, PHASE ONE AS 

RECORDED WITH THE JUDGE OF PROBATE BALDWIN COUNTY, 

ALABAMA ON SLIDE 2414-A&B, SECTION 35, TOWNSHIP 5 SOUTH, 

RANGE 2 EAST; THENCE NORTHERLY ALONG THE EAST RIGHT-OF-

WAY BOUNDARY LINE OF STATE HIGHWAY 181 TO THE POINT OF 

THE PROJECTED INTERSECTION OF THE EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE 

OF STATE HIGHWAY 181 AND THE SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 

LAWSON ROAD; THENCE WEST TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

 

Being contiguous to the Corporate Limits of the City of Daphne, Alabama. 

 

SECTION II:  PUBLICATION 

 

 This ordinance shall be published as provided by law, and a certified copy of the same 

shall be filed with the Probate Court of Baldwin County, Alabama. 

 

SECTION III: SEVERABILITY 

 

 The provisions of this Ordinance are severable.  If any section, subsection, sentence, 

clause, phrase, or portion of this Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by 

any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and 

independent provision and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions 

thereof. 

 

 

SECTION IV: EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

This Ordinance shall become effective immediately and be in full force after final 

passage and publication as required by law. 

 

 

 

18



 

ORDINANCE 2011-              ANNEXATION ROW OF AL ST. HWY 181                 PAGE  3  
 

  

 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA ON THIS THE ____ DAY OF ____________, 2011. 

 

 

_______________________________ 

       CATHY S. BARNETTE  

COUNCIL PRESIDENT 

        

 

 

 

       _______________________________ 

       FRED SMALL, 

       MAYOR 

        

 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

__________________________ 

DAVID COHEN, 

CITY CLERK, MMC 

 

  

19



CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
REPORTS OF SPECIAL COMMITTEES 

 
NOTES: 
 
BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENTS REPORT:
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY REPORT: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD: 
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
LIBRARY BOARD: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
PLANNING COMMISSION REPORT: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
RECREATION BOARD REPORT: 
 
                                                                    
UTILITY BOARD REPORT: 
 
                                                                          
 
 
 

20



SET A PUBLIC HEARING DATE 

 

SEPTEMBER 6, 2011 
 

 

TO CONSIDER: 

 

 

 

1.)     Annexation:   Audubon Holding, LLC 

      

    Property Located:  Southeast of the intersection of County  

       Road 64 and Pollard Road 

 

     Present Zoning:  RMF-6, Multiple Family District in 

       Baldwin County District 15 

 

     Requested Zoning:  R-4, High Density Multi-Family Residential 

       District 

 

     Recommendation:          Unanimous Favorable 

 

_________________________________________________________ 

 

 

2.)  Annexation:   Right-of-Way of AL State Highway181 

 

     Property Located:  AL State Highway 181 from Lawson Road  

                South to the Southernmost Corporate 

       Limits of the City of Daphne 

 

  Recommendation:          Unanimous Favorable              

21



22



23



24



25



26



27



 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

ORDINANCE 2011-____ 

 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO ANNEX AUDUBON PARK APARTMENTS, PHASE ONE, INTO 

THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

WHEREAS, the owners of the property described in Section I of this Ordinance have 

signed and filed a written petition with the City Clerk of the City of Daphne, Alabama, 

requesting that such property be annexed to the corporate limits of the City of Daphne, 

Alabama; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, all of such property is located and contained within an area contiguous to 

the corporate limits of the City of Daphne, Alabama and does not lie within the corporate limits 

or police jurisdiction of any other municipality; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, said petition contains an accurate description of the property or territory 

proposed to be annexed together with a map of said property showing its relationship to the 

corporate limits of the City of Daphne; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the City of Daphne, Alabama, at its 

regularly scheduled meeting of June 23, 2011, forwarded a unanimous favorable 

recommendation to the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama for annexation of the 

areas shown in Exhibit “A” with said property being zoned as a R-4, High Density Multi-

Family Residential, District; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, after proper publication, a public hearing was held by the City Council on 

August 1, 2011, concerning the petition for annexation; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne determined it is in the public 

interest that said real property be annexed into the City of Daphne, Alabama and that all legal 

requirements for annexing said real property have been met pursuant to Sections 11-42-20 

through 11-42-24, Code of Alabama (1975).  

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 SECTION I:  ANNEXATION 

 

 The boundary lines of the City of Daphne, Alabama, be, and the same are hereby altered 

or rearranged as to include all of the territory heretofore encompassed by the corporate limits of 

the City of Daphne, Alabama and in addition thereto the following described territory, to-wit: 

 

 

 

 

28



 

 ORDINANCE 2011-      ANNEXATION AUDUBON HOLDING, LLC             PAGE  2 

 

Name: Audubon Park Apartments, Phase One 

 

Legal Description: LOT 2, FINAL PLAT (REVISED), AUDUBON 

PARK SUBDIVISION, RESUBDIVISION OF LOT 2, 

AS PER PLAT RECORDED ON SLIDE NO. 2364-F 

OF THE PROBATE COURT RECORDS OF 

BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA.  

 

SECTION II:  PUBLICATION 

 

 This ordinance shall be published as provided by law, and a certified copy of the same 

shall be filed with the Probate Court of Baldwin County, Alabama. 

 

SECTION III: SEVERABILITY 

 

 The provisions of this Ordinance are severable.  If any section, subsection, sentence, 

clause, phrase, or portion of this Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by 

any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and 

independent provision and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions 

thereof. 

 

SECTION IV: EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

This Ordinance shall become effective immediately and be in full force after final 

passage and publication as required by law. 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA ON THIS THE ____ DAY OF ____________, 2011. 

 

 

       _______________________________ 

       CATHY S. BARNETTE,  

COUNCIL PRESIDENT 

        

 

 

       _______________________________ 

       FRED SMALL, 

       MAYOR 

        

ATTEST: 

 

__________________________ 

DAVID COHEN 

CITY CLERK, MMC 

29



30



31



32



33



34



35



CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MAYOR'S REPORT 

 
 

NOTES: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
  
 
 
 
 

36



CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 
NOTES:                                                              
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
                                                                    

                                                                    
DEPARTMENT HEAD’S COMMENTS  

 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 

                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
      
 
 
 
 

37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
RESOLUTIONS, ORDINANCES, ORDERS & OTHER BUSINESS 

 
NOTES: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
 
 
 
 

57



ORDINANCE 2011-55  
 
 

Floor Scrubber for Floor Maintenance 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2010-71 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2011 
Budget on December 20, 2010; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2011 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2011 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the adopted budget does not include an appropriation for a floor 
scrubber to assist with floor cleaning and maintenance of City buildings; and 
 
WHEREAS, due to the increase in foot traffic in City buildings a more efficient 
method of floor maintenance is needed, and 
 
WHEREAS, an automatic floor scrubber would provide faster and more efficient 
cleaning of the floors in city buildings. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that: the Fiscal Year 2011 Budget is hereby amended to include a 
General Fund appropriation in the amount of $3,400 for a floor scrubber.   
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS               day of                      , 2011. 
 

                                                                                                                                                    
_________________________________ 

                                                                       Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 
     

_________________________________ 
                                                                       Fred Small, Mayor 
          
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk MMC 

58



ORDINANCE 2011-56  
 
 

Daphne High School Stadium - Final Payment 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2010-71 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2011 
Budget on December 20, 2010; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2011 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2011 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Final Payment  is due in October for the Daphne High School 
Stadium; and 
 
WHEREAS, the FY011 adopted budget does not include an appropriation for early 
payment of this debt; and 
 
WHEREAS, early payment from the FY2011 Budget is requested to alleviate this 
debt from the FY2012 Budget process and thereby make these funds available for 
other purposes. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that: the Fiscal Year 2011 Budget is hereby amended to include a 
General Fund appropriation in the amount of $168,000 for the final payment on the  
Daphne High School Stadium.   
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS               day of                      , 2011. 
 

                                                                                                                                                    
_________________________________ 

                                                                       Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 
     

_________________________________ 
                                                                       Fred Small, Mayor 
          
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk MMC 

59



ORDINANCE 2011-57  
 
 

One-Time Lump Sum Pay Adjustment 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2010-71 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2011 
Budget on December 20, 2010; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2011 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2011 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the adopted budget does not include an appropriation for a One-Time 
Lump Sum Pay Adjustment for Full and Part-Time employees; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, has determined that 
for work to be performed by Daphne employees during the period of July 2nd  to 
July 15th,  2011, each regular full-time employee shall be paid the additional sum of 
$500 (Net) and each regular part-time employee shall be paid the additional sum of 
$150 (Net) to be paid following completion of work on July 22, 2011 . 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that: the Fiscal Year 2011 Budget is hereby amended to include an 
appropriation in the amount of $153,655 for Full-Time employees to receive an 
additional sum of $500 (Net) and Part-Time employees to receive an additional 
sum of $150 (Net).   
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS               day of                      , 2011. 
 

                                                                                                                                                    
_________________________________ 

                                                                      Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 
     

_________________________________ 
                                                                       Fred Small, Mayor 
          
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk MMC 

60


	AGENDA.pdf
	City Roll Call.pdf
	Council Minutes - July 18.pdf
	Reporting of Standing Committees.pdf
	Public Works - Envirronmental Brd Nominee.pdf
	Backup to PC Letter - ANNEXTION - Hwy181.pdf
	Special Reports.pdf
	PUBLIC HEARING SET DATE LIST FOR PACKET.pdf
	PC Letter - Audubon Annex.pdf
	Backup to PC Letter - Audubon Park Annexation.pdf
	PC Letter Annex Hwy 181 ROW.pdf
	Mayors Report.pdf
	City Attorneys and Department Head Report.pdf
	Leon Allen Property.pdf
	Marino  Property.pdf
	RESOLUTION - ORDINANCES - DIVIDER PAGE.pdf
	2011-55 - ORD - Floor Scrubber-BM.pdf
	2011-56 - ORD - DHS Stadium - Final Payment.pdf
	2011-57 - ORD - One-Time Lump Sum Pay Adjustment.pdf

